
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes      Linda Cowles 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

  
Neil West      Ginger McFadden   

  

          
             

Matthew Hanks       Mary Starr 
 

 
 
 

Daniel Tunstall 
 
 
 

 

MARCH 25, 2013                   6:00 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 25, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, MARCH 25, 
2013, AT 6:00 P.M., 2nd Floor CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the March 4, 2013, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 
6:30 p.m. 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

A.  CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 
SHELTON RIDGE LANE PHASE TWO STREET DEDICATION 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 518 
SCR, LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane 
Phase 2, a 8.163 acre street dedication located within the Southlake 
Subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 8.163 acres of land located in the H. T. 
& B. R.R. Co. Survey, Sec. 84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, being a portion of that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land 
conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. by instrument of record in File No. 2011089118, Official 
Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas (F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 
2011036869, Official Public Records, Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.) 
 
General Location: A half mile west of the southwest corner of Broadway Street 
and Kingsley Drive 
 
 

B. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF 
SAVANNAH BEND SECTION FOUR 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah 
Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision located on the 
following described property, to wit 
 

Decision 
Date: 

3/29/2013 

Decision 
Date: 

3/29/2013 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 25, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Legal Description:  Being 7.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas 
 
General Location:  Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane 
 
 

C.  CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – STRICKLAND CHEVROLET 
 
Approval of an exception to the Exterior Building Design Requirements of 
Section 2.6.2.1 (b) of the Unified Development Code for a franchise business 
with an established theme 
 
Legal Description:  A 18.5436 Acre (807,579 SQ. FT.) Tract of Land being out 
of Lot 51 and Lot 53 of the Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company, Section 
6, recorded in Vol. 135, PG. 501 H.C.D.R., located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. 
Survey, A-544, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  5719 Broadway 

 
D. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – HUGHES ROAD CLUSTER  

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry Gilberts and Associates, applicant and Dan 
Olson, owner, for approval of a Cluster Plan on a 74.419 acre tract of land for  a 
single-family residential subdivision, generally located on the south side of 
Hughes Road east of Pearland Parkway 
 
Legal Description: Being 74.419 acre tract of land situated in the Thomas J. Green 
Survey, Abstract 290, Harris County, Texas located in Section “G” of the Allison-
Richey Gulf Coast Home Company part of Suburban Gardens according to the plat 
recorded in Volume 4, Page 48 of the Harris County Map Records (H.C.M.R.) 
Harris County, Texas 
 
General Location: South side of Hughes Road East of Pearland Parkway 
 
 
 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 25, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

E. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 
2013-01 
 
A request of Mike Chance, applicant for Crown Warehouse Service, Inc., owner, 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Plumbing Shop (No Outside 
Storage) in the PD-GB zone, on the following described property: 
 
Legal Description: Approximately 3.0 Acre Tract of land out of a 10 Acre Tract, a  
residue of D. H, Stripling12.000 Acre Tract recorded Volume 868, Page 239 of the 
Brazoria County Deed Records. All being part of the South 99 Acres of the H.T. & 
B. R. R.  Co. Survey, Sec. 7, A-219 as recorded in Volume 595, Page 63 of the 
Deed of Records of Brazoria County, Texas  
 
General Location:  6301 Broadway Street 

 
 

F.   DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. P&Z Strategic Plan  
3. Next P&Z/Workshop (Cluster Development) – April 01, 2013 
4. Friendswood EDC – Community Development Email 
5. P&Z Survey Discussion 
6. APA National Conference 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City 
Hall on the 22nd  day of March, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of March 2013. 

Decision 
Date: 

3/29/2013 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, MARCH 
4, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. with the 
following present: 
 

P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Neil West 
P&Z Commissioner Matthew Hanks 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
 

Also in attendance were:  City Planner Harold Ellis, Planner I Lauren Stanley, Director 
of Community Development Lata Krishnarao, Assistant City Manager Mike Hodge, 
Director of Engineering and Capital Projects Trent Epperson, and Administrative Clerk 
Debbie Cody. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve the minutes of the P&Z 
Regular Meeting of February 18, 2013, and P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
seconded. 
 
The vote was 7-0 and the minutes of the Planning and Zoning Regular Meeting of 
February 18, 2013 were approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR A WAIVER OF 
DECISION FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHELTON RIDGE LANE PHASE 2 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, INC., applicant, on behalf of 518SCR, 
LTD, owner for approval of a Waiver of Decision on the Preliminary Plat of Shelton 
Ridge Lane Phase 2, to allow time to resolve all outstanding items. 
 
Being a subdivision of 8.163 acres of land located in the H.T.& B.R.R. Co. Survey, Sec. 
84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, being a portion of 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

 

that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. By instrument 
of record in File No. 2011089118, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas 
(F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 2011036869, Official Public records, Brazoria 
County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
 
Planner I Lauren Stanley presented the staff report and explained the reason for the 
request for waiver of decision was that the applicant needed more time to comply with 
staff comments.  One of the comments was the need for the applicant to widen the right 
of way to 80 feet.  She reinforced the applicants request by highlighting the supporting 
documents including the letter from LJA Engineering, Inc. requesting said waiver. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden made a motion to approve, and P&Z Chairperson 
Henry Fuertes seconded. 
 
The vote was 7-0 approving the Waiver of Decision. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHELTON 
RIDGE LANE PHASE 2 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 518SCR, 
LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2, a 8.163 
acre street dedication located within the Southlake Subdivision, to wit 
 
Being a subdivision of 8.163 acres of land located in the H.T. & B. R.R. Co. Survey, 
Sec. 84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas, being a 
portion of that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. By 
instrument of record in File No. 2011089118, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, 
Texas (F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 2011036869, Official Public Records, 
Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
 
Due to the approval of the Waiver of Decision for the aforementioned plat, Chairperson 
Henry Fuertes stated there was no need to take action on this item. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Commissioners Activity Report – Chairperson Henry Fuertes stated that he had 

been in West Palm Beach, Florida on business and was at a “waste to fuel” facility 
that produces electrical power.  He explained the process of how the trash is sorted 
for recycling purposes and the trash goes into a boiler which creates steam which 
starts the turbine, which turns the generator, which generates the power.  He also 
stated that $100,000 of coins and $5 million of aluminum are thrown away annually.  
The basis of his report was food for thought in relation to the City of Pearland.  
 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

 

2. Zoning Update – City Planner Harold Ellis reported there were no CUPs, but three 
zone changes approved  which were: 

a. Change from Single Family Residential – 1 (R-1) to Neighborhood Service 
(NS) located at the Northeast corner of Magnolia and Manvel Roads with 
overlaid CUP for child daycare center and restaurant 

b. Change from R-1 to R-3 located North of Summer Breeze Drive between 
Miller Ranch Road and Silver Lake Parkway 

c. Change from NS to General Business (GB) located at 7902/7904 
Broadway 

Chairperson Henry Fuertes asked if the City Council all concurred with the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on these zone changes and City Planner Ellis 
said yes. 
 

3. P&Z Strategic Plan Update - City Planner Harold Ellis stated the need to have all the 
team meetings finalized by March 15 and that the Plan should be finalized by July in 
order to stay on task with the timeline of discussions with Commission before 
proceeding to the Council.  He stated he would be going over the schedule in the 
near future. 
 

4. Planning Day – City Planner Ellis stated Planning Day would be on March 7th in the 
City Council Chambers.  He gave a brief overview of the topics that would be 
covered including redevelopment and reuse of existing properties, subdivision 
platting, and the permitting process.  Chairperson Henry Fuertes stated he would be 
in Atlanta on business at that time and unable to attend.  Vice-Chairperson Linda 
Cowles said she would attend and mentioned that some people had inquired as to 
the purpose of Planning Day and who it applied to. She explained that it would be 
informative and give insight to our planning process.  City Planner Ellis reiterated 
that the purpose was to address the processes based on the most prevalent activity 
within the city. He also stated that the targeted audience was the development 
community, builders, agents, and any interested citizens. Commissioner Matthew 
Hanks asked what time it started and City Planner Ellis said 8:30 a.m.  Chairperson 
Fuertes asked if it was a quarterly event and Community Development Director 
Krishnarao stated it had become an annual event. 

 
5. Next P&Z and JPH Meeting – March 25, 2013 – City Planner Ellis mentioned that 

there would be one Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to be presented at the Joint Public 
Hearing.  There would also be a Joint Workshop regarding a potential multi-family 
development that had been revised and also on the agenda for the workshop would 
be Cluster Development.  Chairperson Fuertes asked if anyone had a problem 
attending on that date and there was a consensus that all commissioners did not 
have a problem with attending the Joint Public Hearing on March 25th. 

 
 
 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

March 4, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular Meeting at 6:42 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 25th day of March 2013, A.D.  
 

            __________________________________  
           P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    03/19/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 

 
 
  Old Business       New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on 
behalf of 518SCR, LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge 
Lane Phase 2 a 8.163 acre street dedication located within the Southlake 
Subdivision, generally located a half mile west of the southwest corner of 
Broadway Street and Kingsley Drive. 

 
 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:   Approval  



 
 

P&Z 03/04/2013 
Preliminary Plat – Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2013 
 

 
Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2  
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 518 
SCR, LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane 
Phase 2, a 8.163 acre street dedication located within the Southlake Subdivision, 
to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 8.163 acres of land located in the H. T. & 
B. R.R. Co. Survey, Sec. 84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, being a portion of that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land 
conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. by instrument of record in File No. 2011089118, Official 
Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas (F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 
2011036869, Official Public Records, Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
 
General Location: A half mile west of the southwest corner of Broadway Street 
and Kingsley Drive. 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2, a 
8.163 acre street dedication located within the Southlake Subdivision. The proposed 
street is located within the Shadow Creek Ranch Addendum Planned Unit 
Development.  The Shadow Creek Ranch Addendum was approved on February 23, 
2006 for approximately 453 acres of land within the City of Pearland.  This Preliminary 
Plat is for a portion of the road in phase 2 of this Development. This the second phase 
of the previously approved Shelton Ridge – Hannover Heights Final Plat, approved on 
January 7, 2013.  This second phase will serve future sections of the Southlake 
Subdivision.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North SD (Suburban Development) Vacant Land 
South ETJ Single Family Residential, 

Vacant Land 
East PUD (Planned Unit 

Development – Southern Trails), 
ETJ 

Single Family Residential 
(Southern Trails) 

West ETJ Vacant Land, Single Family 
Residential 

 

 



 
 

P&Z 03/04/2013 
Preliminary Plat – Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 

Page 2 
 

 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The Unified Development Code does not apply to 
the subject development as it is under the previous Subdivision Ordinance and Land 
Use and Urban Design Guidelines.   
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  Southlake Section 1 and 2 will 
be served by the 80 foot street right-of-way called Shelton Ridge, which is shown in this 
plat. This next phase of Shelton Ridge Lane will serve future sections of the Southlake 
Subdivision. This road is in conformance with the thoroughfare plan. The current plat 
shows a right-of-way of 70’.  This is required to be an 80’ right-of-way as per the 
approved Shadow Creek Ranch Planned Development.  
     
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
approved by the Engineering Department. All requirements have been addressed. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Preliminary Plat as 
proposed by the applicant for the following reasons and the following condition:  
 

1. The proposed preliminary plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the Shadow Creek Ranch Development as 
well as the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
 

4. This request is in conformance with the thoroughfare plan.   
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge lane Phase 2 

 



Vicinity Map
Preliminary Plat of
Shelton Ridge Lane
Phase 2

PUD

RE

SD

CR 59

6TH

7TH

BROADWAY ST

3RD

CR 967BERAN

FIRST

WEST TRAIL DR

TRAIL MANOR DR

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Use Map
Preliminary Plat of
Shelton Ridge Lane
Phase 2

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

Low Density Residential

Parks

Medium Density Residential

Business Commercial

CR 59

6TH

7TH

BROADWAY ST

3RD

CR 967BERAN

FIRST

WEST TRAIL DR

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Plat of
Shelton Ridge Lane
Phase 2

CR 59

6TH

7TH

BROADWAY ST

3RD

CR 967BERAN

FIRST

WEST TRAIL DR

TRAIL MANOR DR

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    03/19/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 

 
 

 Old Business      X   New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular P&Z meetings are held on the first and third Monday of every month. This form must be received 6 
calendar days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf 
of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah 
Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision located on 
Savannah Bend Dr, and Fieldcrest Ln.  

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval. 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Final Plat - Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2013 
 

 
Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah 
Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision located on the 
following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 7.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane. 
  

 
 
SUMMARY:  This request is for the approval of a Final Plat for a 26-lot single-family 
subdivision within Savannah Development.  This proposed subdivision is within the City 
of Pearland’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and has a development agreement with 
the City.  As the property is in the ETJ, Zoning does not apply. However, this 
development is governed by a development agreement which adheres to the city 
ordinance dealing specifically with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The Unified Development Code does not apply for 
the Savannah Development Agreement as this was approved with the previous zoning 
ordinance, the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. The Development 
Agreement that is in place regulates the overall development of the subdivision and 
meets the guidelines of the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Savannah Bend Section 
4 appears to be in conformance with the approved Savannah Development agreement.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Final Plat - Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 2 
 

 
Exhibit 1: Savannah Development Agreement: R-3 (Single Family Dwelling 

District) 
Standard Required R-3 Standard Minimum Provided 
Minimum lot width N/A 60 Feet Approximately      

65 feet 
Minimum lot depth N/A N/A 120 feet 
Minimum lot area N/A 6,000 Square feet Greater than 7,000 

Square feet 
Maximum Density 7 dwelling units an 

acre or less 
N/A 3.07 Dwelling Units 

an acre. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
South ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
East ETJ (None) Vacant land 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLACE: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is 8000 – 9000 sq. ft.    
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
within the Savannah development and served by local streets.  The Savannah 
Development is served by a future 120-foot Major Thoroughfare of Post Road (CR 58).     
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there have been no additional comments.   
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Savannah Development Agreement.  Plans have been reviewed and approved by the 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Final Plat - Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 3 
 

Engineering Department. 
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees have been paid in full for this section 
of the development. 
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  One percent of the total cost of infrastructure has been paid 
to the city for the cost of inspections.  An agreement has been reached with the city 
allowing the developer to pay previously unpaid inspection fees in installments.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of 
Savannah Bend Section Four as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Savannah Bend Section Four Final Plat 

 
 
 



Vicinity Map 

Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

iclowes
Typewritten Text

iclowes
Typewritten Text



Future Land Use Map
Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

Low Density Residential

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes, Planner II 
 
DATE:    03/25/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Exception to the Exterior Building Design Requirements 

 
 
  Old Business       New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 

 

Summary: This is a request for an approval of an exception to the Exterior Building 
Design Requirements of Section 2.6.2.1 (b) of the Unified Development Code for a 
franchise business with an established theme for a Chevrolet Dealership located at 
5719 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
 
Strickland Chevrolet is interested in renovating their current facility and is required to 
meet corporate design guidelines. These guidelines indicate that the exterior façade 
material consist of a metal composite.  As this is not included in our definition of 
masonry, the applicant is requesting an exception to this requirement.  

 
Staff Recommendation:   Approval of Exception 

 
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Strickland Façade Exception 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2013 
 

 
Exception to Exterior Building Design Requirements   
 

A request by Jason Guzak, applicant, on behalf Lee Mehta, General Manager of 
Strickland Chevrolet, owner, for approval of an exception to the Exterior Building 
Design Requirements of Section 2.6.2.1 (b) of the Unified Development Code 
 
Legal Description: A 18.5436 Acre (807,579 SQ. FT.) Tract of Land being out of 
Lot 51 and Lot 53 of the Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company, Section 6, 
recorded in Vol. 135, PG. 501 H.C.D.R., located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, 
A-544, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location: 5719 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for an approval of an exception to the Exterior Building 
Design Requirements of Section 2.6.2.1 (b) of the Unified Development Code for a 
franchise business with an established theme for a Chevrolet Dealership located at 
5719 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
 
The Unified Development Code (UDC) requires that all commercial buildings located on 
a non local street (collector and larger) be clad in masonry materials.  The UDC defines 
masonry as follow: 
 

MASONRY: Brick, stone brick veneer, custom treated tilt wall, decorative or 
textured concrete block, split face block and stucco.  EIFS (exterior insulation 
and finish systems) shall be included within this definition only for the purposes of 
masonry trim. 

 
Strickland Chevrolet is interested in renovating their current facility and is required to 
meet corporate design guidelines. These guidelines indicate that the exterior façade 
material consist of a metal composite.  As this is not included in our definition of 
masonry, the applicant is requesting an exception to this requirement.  
 
The applicant has provided documentation (included in this report) indicating 
Chevrolet’s design requirements, as well as images from recently removed or new 
Chevrolet dealerships which have been constructed of the metal composite being 
proposed for the Pearland dealership.   
 
Section 2.6.2.1 (b) (d) of the Unified Development Code indicates: 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Strickland Façade Exception 

Page 2 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission may make an exception to the 
requirements of Subsection (b)(1) above for franchise businesses that have an 
established theme.  In order to make such exception, the franchise business 
cannot have varied from the established theme in any other instance or other 
city.  Such information shall be provided by the City Planning Director and/or the 
franchise business representative. 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North General Commercial (GC) Residential Home 
South General Commercial (GC) and 

Manufactured Home Park (MH) Commercial/Mobile Home Park 

East General Commercial (GC) Commercial 
West General Commercial (GC) Commercial 

 
 
SITE HISTORY:  The site has received two prior Conditional Use Permits (CUP’s), 
summarized below: 
 
1) CUP 2008-20 – For the use of “aluminum composite materials” for the exterior façade 
of a business located in the General Commercial (GC) district where a masonry material 
is required by the Unified Development Code. 
 
Strickland wanted to update the exterior façade of their main sales facility to a non-
masonry material, discussed above.  The request was approved to allow the requested 
material, however the amount of the façade clad in “aluminum composite” was limited to 
35%.  As this Conditional Use Permit was never acted on, it has since expired. 
 
2) CUP 2012-02 – To expand the floor area of an existing structure while maintaining 
existing non-conforming front yard landscaping and perimeter fencing. 
 
Strickland wanted to replace and enlarge their existing used car facility, however in 
order to do so, as the site had the two non-conformities above, a Conditional Use 
Permit was needed.  This was granted in May 2012. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission consider the exception. 
 
The applicant will be presenting the Commission with examples of recent new or 
remodeled stores and documentation that this style is not varied from in any other 
instance. 
 



 
 

P&Z 03/25/2013 
Strickland Façade Exception 

Page 3 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Preliminary Plat of Shelton Ridge lane Phase 2 

 

































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 3/25/2013 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2013 
 

 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan 
 

A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry Gilberts and Associates, applicant and Dan 
Olson, owner, for approval of a Cluster Plan on a 74.419 acre tract of land for  a 
single-family residential subdivision, generally located on the south side of 
Hughes Road east of Pearland Parkway. 
 
Legal Description: Being 74.419 acre tract of land situated in the Thomas J. 
Green Survey, Abstract 290, Harris County, Texas located in Section “G” of the 
Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company part of Suburban Gardens according 
to the plat recorded in Volume 4, Page 48 of the Harris County Map Records 
(H.C.M.R.) Harris County, Texas.  

 
General Location: South side of Hughes Road East of Pearland Parkway. 
 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Cluster Plan on Hughes Road.  The proposal is for 
182 single-family residential lots, with 7.5 acres of amenitized dry detention, a 1.1 acre 
park, 2 seating nodes, and a number of neighborhood enhancements, in the form of a 
primary entry feature, 6’ trails throughout the development and an extension of the 10’ 
regional trail along Clear Creek.  
 
The Cluster Plan is intended to allow flexibility with lot sizes for the developer and in 
return the applicant shall provide open space and amenities which are not achieved 
through the application of minimum lot standards.  These open spaces and amenities 
are specifically listed as criteria of approval for a Cluster Development Plan, among 
other criteria listed in the Unified Development Code. (Section 2.2.4.4, UDC, Criteria of 
Approval for Cluster Development Plans) 
 
The property is currently zoned Low Density Residential R-1. The typical proposed lot 
size for the Cluster Development plan will be a mix of 65’ x 120,’ and 55’ x 120’ which 
equals 6,600 to 7,800 square feet. The minimum required lot size in the R-1 zone is 
8,800 sq. ft. with minimum dimensions of 80’ x 90’ and a residential density 3.2 for a 
cluster development.  The density being proposed is 2.46 units per acre.  This 
information is further illustrated in the table below: 
 
     

Proposed Cluster R-1  
Minimum lot area:  6,600 sq ft  8,800 sq ft  

 



 
 

P&Z 3/25/2013 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 2 
 

Minimum lot width:  55’*   80’   
Minimum lot depth:  120’*   90’   
Density (units/acre)  2.46   3.2 
 
*breakdown of proposed lots: 
 55’ X 120’: 103 
 65’ X 120’:   80 
 
Total lots achievable with R-1: 238 
Total lots proposed with Cluster:  183   
 
The definition of gross residential density, per the Unified Development Code is below: 
 

 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North R-1 Cluster Preserve at Highland Glen 

Subdivision 
South OP Vacant  
East R-1 Cluster Riverstone Ranch Subdivision 
West R-3 City Treatment Facility 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned Low Density 
Residential (R-1). If approved for this site, a cluster development plan would allow the 
developer to vary the size of lots as long as the overall density of the development does 
not go over 3.2 dwelling units an acre, as specified in Section 2.2.4.3 of the Unified 
Development Code.  All other development requirements in the Unified Development 
Code will be required to be met. 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN: The Planning and Zoning 
Commission, or the City Council on appeal, shall apply the following factors in taking 
action on the Cluster Development Plan application, contained in Section 2.2.4.4 of the 
Unified Development Code: 
 

1. The Cluster Development Plan meets the standards for residential density 



 
 

P&Z 3/25/2013 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 3 
 

as outlined in the following in relation to each zoning district:  
 

The proposed Cluster Plan submitted would meet the 3.2 units per acre 
requirement, as the proposed density is 2.46 units per acre. 

 
2. The Cluster Development Plan is consistent with other zoning district 

regulations, except minimum lot size, width and depth. 
 

The proposed Cluster Development Plan is consistent with the R-1 (Low 
Density Residential) zoning district, with the exception of the variations on 
lot size, width and depth.  

 
3. The Cluster Development Plan contains sufficient buffering to assure 

compatibility with adjacent uses and the character of the neighborhood.  
 

The proposed Cluster Development Plan will abut R-1 (Low Density 
Residential) zoning to the north and the east, and Single Family 
Residential-3 (R-3) to the west. Clear Creek acts as a natural buffer from 
the Office Professional (OP) and General Business (GB) zoned property 
to the south.  It is not anticipated that additional buffering will be necessary 
to mitigate any adverse impact. 

 
4. The Cluster Development Plan provides open space or amenities to the 

development that could not be achieved through application of minimum 
lot size standards.  As referred to herein, open space and amenities do not 
include any land dedicated to the City under the parkland dedication 
requirement in Chapter 3, Article 2, Division 10.   

 
The proposed Cluster Plan shows a total of 8.6 acres of park area and 
amenitized detention.  This is equal to 12% of the entire development.  
Additional open space is shown but has not been calculated by the 
applicant.  Staff has requested these additional numbers.   

 
STAFF CONCERNS: At this time, staff has a few concerns that need to be addressed 
prior to the approval of this cluster plan.  A number of comments/concerns were relayed 
to the applicant, and the following are ones that remain unaddressed: 
 
1) An exhibit was provided for the tubular fencing, but not for the upgraded wood 
fencing as requested in initial comments. 
 
2) Acreage of open space, aside from parks areas and detention areas, is not 
calculated. 
 
3) Staff is unclear what parkland dedication credits are being requested, if any.  The 
current parkland dedication fee is $750 per lot.  A parkland dedication agreement needs 
to be executed, if requested.   



 
 

P&Z 3/25/2013 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 4 
 

 
4) Method of density calculation is not provided in cluster document.  Total area of land 
used for density calculations should not include land that or improvements that will 
would get credit for parkland dedication requirement. 
 
5) A parkland dedication agreement needs to be in place indicating credit allotted by the 
Parks Department and remaining fees to be paid by the developer. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This property has not yet been platted.  Approval of the Cluster 
Development Plan is the first step in that process.  Formal subdivision platting will be 
required prior to development. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that corresponding lot sizes for Suburban 
Residential would be 10,000, 12,000, or 15,000 square foot lots.  Therefore, the 
proposed development is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject contains frontage 
on Hughes Road, a secondary thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way of 100’.  
Hughes Road is currently constructed as a two lane road, with a width of approximately 
30’.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site, but 
would have to be extended to the site by the applicant.  
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: It is not anticipated that the 
proposed Cluster Development Plan will have negative impact on existing surrounding 
developments or future development.  Additionally, as the proposed Cluster Plan 
appears to meet the criteria of approval in the Unified Development Code, there are 
additional assurances that the proposed development should not have a negative 
impact on existing and future development in the area.  The proposed amenities should 
have a positive impact on surrounding and future developments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the proposed Cluster 
Development Plan, with the following conditions, for the following reasons: 
 
1) The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to meet the criteria of approval in 
the Unified Development Plan. 
 
2) The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to be compatible with surrounding 
zoning and uses. 
 
3) The proposed Cluster Development Plan does not appear to have any adverse 
impact on surrounding zoning and land uses. 
 



 
 

P&Z 3/25/2013 
Hughes Road Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 5 
 

Conditions of Approval: 
 
1) Outstanding comments and remaining exhibits to be addressed and/or submitted to 
staff prior to preliminary plat submittal to the City.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Cluster Plan Exhibit 

 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Hughes Road Cluster
Hughes Road @
Pearland Parkway

R-1 CLUSTER

R-1
PUD

GB

R-3

OP

R-2

HUGHES RD

PEARLAND PKWY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Hughes Road Cluster
Hughes Road @
Pearland Parkway

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

Parks

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Offices

HUGHES RD

PEARLAND PKWY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Hughes Road Cluster
Hughes Road @
Pearland ParkwayHUGHES RD

PEARLAND PKWY

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

































Cluster Development Plan – Hughes Road 
~74.1 acres 
 
Staff comments: 
 

 55’ X 120’ and 65’ X 120’ lots are referred to, please indicate these lot sizes on proposed 

schematic plan 

 Acreages of parks and detention space is shown on plan, however open space acreage is not.  

Please indicate this on proposed schematic plan.  It may be helpful to also provide a chart which 

indicates detention, parks, and open space and respective area calculations. 

 530 caliper inches are proposed for trees within the development.  Is this number above and 

beyond what is required by the UDC?  For example, two trees per lot are required – does this 

number include that?  Additionally – what type of trees are being proposed? 

 Trees are indicated in amenity areas – provide a minimum caliper inches for each area for 

implementation purposes. 

 Trees along Hughes Rd would serve as a good amenity for the area. 

 Enhanced wood fencing is referenced – please provide exhibits which indicate material, areas of 

enhanced fencing, and specifications.   Initial discussions indicated masonry was being 

considered along Hughes Rd.  The Unified Development Code requires a 6’ masonry wall where 

residential lots abut a thoroughfare street. 

 Tubular fencing is referenced – please provide exhibits which indicate material, areas of tubular 

fencing, and specifications.   

 A boulevarded entry is referenced with enhanced planting and neighborhood identification– 

please provide exhibits which indicate what is being proposed. 

 Berming is proposed in landscaped and open area – please provide additional detail as to where, 

how high, etc?  Berming along Hughes Road and landscape reserves may best serve as an 

amenity. 

 A phasing plan is referred to for the City of Pearland 10’ trail, please provide a phasing plan for 

development. 

 Please indicate that the 10’ COP trail, as well as other 6’ trails being proposed will be concrete.  

As this trail is not actually part of the Cluster Development, this is not considered an amenity for 

the development. 



 If amenities are to be phased, we need an agreement signed which addresses at what times 

specific amenities will be completed. 

 Seating node pictures do not show seating areas – benches appear to be left out. 

 We need an agreement which lays out parkland dedication, similar to past Cluster Development 

Plans. 

 All open spaces in the development need to be counted as part of the Cluster Development and 

not part of parkland dedication area. 

 The trail and related improvements may be calculated as part of parkland dedication. 

 Provide a comparison chart between amenities being provided as part of the proposed Cluster 

plan and what would be required for a standard neighborhood development. 

 How is the density being calculated?  Does this include parkland dedication?  Open space?  

Provide basis for calculation. 

 All property owners need to sign the Cluster Development plan application. 

 

 

 

 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 03-25-2013 
CUP 2013-01 

Page 1 
 

      
      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-01 
 

A request of Mike Chance, applicant for Crown Warehouse Service, Inc., owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Plumbing Shop (No Outside 
Storage) in the PD-GB zone, on the following described property: 
 

 

Legal Description: Approximately 3.0 Acre Tract of land out of a 10 Acre Tract, a  
residue of D. H, Stripling12.000 Acre Tract recorded Volume 
868, Page 239 of the Brazoria County Deed Records. All being 
part of the South 99 Acres of the H.T. & B. R. R.  Co. Survey, 
Sec. 7, A-219 as recorded in Volume 595, Page 63 of the 
Deed of Records of Brazoria County, Texas  

 

General Location: 6301 Broadway Street 
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone 
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  March 25, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:           April 8, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:     April 22, 2013* 
 
 (*dates subject to change if item is tabled) 

 
 
 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
for a Plumbing Shop with no outside storage. The property is currently zoned Planned 
Development (PD), which permits the proposed use with the approval of a CUP.   
 
The current PD, Botanical Landscape Designs, was approved by City Council on April 
8, 2002.  The PD was approved for a landscape design business which the applicants 
to amend the fencing requirements on site, and utilize outside storage for landscaping 
materials.  The property was previously zoned Suburban Development (SD).  The 
approved PD document indicates that that the base zoning district is General Business 
(GB). The PD was amended by the City Council on November 8, 2010 to allow 



 
 

JPH 03-25-2013 
CUP 2013-01 

Page 2 
 

additional uses and limit building height for any additional structures.  
 
SITE HISTORY: Botanical Landscape Design ceased operations in November of 2009. 
 In October of 2010, a fine arts studio was interested in occupying the existing facility.  
The PD at the time only permitted commercial landscape operations to operate on site. 
 The applicant initially applied for a zone change to the General Business (GB) zone but 
later withdrew that request and amended the existing PD document to allow their 
proposed use.  The amendment allowed for all uses permitted in the GB zone but 
omitted a number of uses that were determined by City Council to be in conflict with the 
surrounding residential uses. Any use within the GB zone that would require a 
conditional use permit (CUP) would be allowed in the PD with the approval of said CUP. 
 The requested use of a Plumbing Shop (No outside storage) falls under this category.  
 
The following is a list of the GB uses that are not permitted in the Botanical Landscape 
Design PD: 
 
 -All uses listed in the land use matrix under the Automobile-Related Use section 
 -Check Cashing Service 
 -Rehab Care Facility (Commercial or Halfway House) 
 -Convenience Store with or without gasoline sales 
 -Restaurant with Drive-In or Drive-Thru service 
 -Tavern 

-Adult Day Care Center (Business) 
-Mortuary/Cemetery (Including Mausoleum/Crematorium) 
-Nursing/Convalescent Home 
-Pet Care Facility/Animal Kennel 
-Exterminator Service/Company 
-Machine Shop 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning  Land Use 

North Single Family Residential-1 
(R-1) 

 Single Family 

South General Commercial (GC)   Office Building 
East General Commercial (GC)  

and Single Family 
Residential-1 
(R-1) 

 Church 
 
Single Family 

West General Business (GB)  Dental Office 

 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject property 
is currently zoned Planned Development (PD).  The parcel is 3 acres and meets the 



 
 

JPH 03-25-2013 
CUP 2013-01 

Page 3 
 

minimum size for a non-residential PD which is 3 acres. The property will be required to 
meet all current requirements of the Unified Development Code for the proposed use 
(parking, screening, etc.). 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is not currently platted.  Future expansion on site 
would require the completion of a Minor Plat for the entire site.   
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Comprehensive Plan 
recommends Business Commercial for the subject property and the surrounding 
properties.  The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that the appropriate zoning districts 
are General Business (GB) and General Commercial (GC). The existing planned 
development, with the allowed uses and listed prohibited uses, is in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has frontage 
on Broadway, a major thoroughfare with sufficient width for right-of-way of 120 feet. There 
are not any dedications required for Broadway. The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in 
conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is served by public water and sewer.  
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The applicant is requesting 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit that would allow a Plumbing Shop to occupy the 
space. The base zone for the PD is GB and the requested use is not excluded by the 
planned development.  All of the properties abutting the subject parcel, with the 
exception of the property to the north and portions to the east, are zoned either GB or 
GC and are used as such.  The property to the north is zoned R-1 and currently has 
one single home on site that is located approximately 300 feet from the subject parcels 
property line.  A fence already exists which acts as a screening element for the 
residential use.  Fences also exist along the eastern portion of the property where two 
single family homes are located approximately 100 feet from the subject parcels 
property line. 
 
The planned development would limit future growth on the site by limiting the height of any 
new buildings as they approach the surrounding residential property.  Specifically, any 
building that is greater than 300’ from Broadway may not exceed 20’ in height. At this time 
the applicant has stated that they do not intend to add any additional structures to the 
property.     
 
Upon redevelopment, the applicant will be required to ensure there are no code 
enforcement issues and any future use will have to meet all requirements of the Unified 
Development Code.  Buffering and screening will be enforced along the areas where the 
subject property abuts residential uses.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 



 
 

JPH 03-25-2013 
CUP 2013-01 

Page 4 
 

Review Committee (DRC) and there are no additional or outstanding comments from other 
departments. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan was not submitted with the application.  The 
site contains an existing building and no new construction is planned at this time.  At the 
time of review for a tenant occupancy or build out, a site plan will be required to ensure 
compliance with all development requirements including parking, screening, landscaping, 
and façade materials. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a sign advertising the proposed Conditional Use 
Permit was placed on the subject property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed Conditional Use Permit 
request at this time.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
No. CUP 2013-01 as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed Conditional Use Permit should not have any significant negative 
impact on the surrounding properties and developments. 
 

2. The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the current land use 
plan. 
 

3. This proposed Conditional Use Permit is compatible with the neighboring properties 
zoning classification 

 
4. The proposed use is permitted as part of the planned development with an 

approved Conditional Use Permit.  
 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 CUP  Application 
 Vicinity  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Other Maps and Related Documents 

 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
CUP 2013-01
6301 Broadway
Crown Warehouse

R-1

GCGB

G/O-MU

R-3

PUD

MF

NS

OP

ODAY RD

BROADWAY ST

GARDEN RD

GARDENIA ST

THELMA DR

LAZY BEND ST

HARKEY RD

WEST OAKS CIR
WEST OAKS BLVD ¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
CUP 2013-01
6301 Broadway
Crown Warehouse

R-1

GCGB

G/O-MU

R-3

PUD

MF

NS

OP

ODAY RD

BROADWAY ST

GARDEN RD

GARDENIA ST

THELMA DR

LAZY BEND ST

HARKEY RD

WEST OAKS CIR
WEST OAKS BLVD ¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2013-01 
    6301 Broadway 
    

     Property Owner Address City State Zip 

AGUIRRE JOHNNY A & CRUZ J 2626 THELMA ST PEARLAND TX 77581 

TIKVA INVESTMENTS LLC 4612 OLEANDER ST BELLAIRE TX 77401 

QUAIL CHASE ASSOCIATES 438 CAMBRIDGE AVE PALO ALTO CA 94306 

ASSOCIATED CREDIT UNION PO BOX 9004 LEAGUE CITY TX 77574 

WEST OAKS H.O.A. 12000 WESTHEIMER #390 HOUSTON TX 77077 

OSTEEN ROBERT L 2550 THELMA ST PEARLAND TX 77581 

PEARLAND ISD PO BOX 7 PEARLAND TX 77588 

TDNT LLC 3114 W OAKS BLVD PEARLAND TX 77584 

WESTSIDE CHURCH OF CHRIST- 6203 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581 

OVIEDO LARRY & ANA CECILIA & 
ENRIQUE DEL CID PO BOX 2757 PEARLAND TX 77588 

ROSINSKI THOMAS EDWARD & 
MELINDA WALSH 6220 GARDENIA ST PEARLAND TX 77581 

CLEAVER RONALD LEE & JUNE 6316 GARDENIA PEARLAND TX 77581 

MCCORVEY ANDRE 2614 THELMA PEARLAND TX  77581 
 
Owner/Applicant 

  Crown Warehouse Service 7915 Montglen Houston TX 77061 

Mike Chance  3117 Autumn Ct. Pearland  TX 77584 
 



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-01
6301 Broadway
Crown Warehouse

Low Density Residential

Business Commercial

Medium Density Residential

Garden/O'Day Mixed Use Dist

High Density Residential

ODAY RD

BROADWAY ST

GARDEN RD

GARDENIA ST

THELMA DR

LAZY BEND ST

HARKEY RD

WEST OAKS CIR
WEST OAKS BLVD ¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-01
6301 Broadway
Crown Warehouse

ODAY RD

BROADWAY ST

GARDEN RD

GARDENIA ST

THELMA DR

LAZY BEND ST

HARKEY RD

WEST OAKS CIR
WEST OAKS BLVD ¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.























dcody
Typewritten Text

dcody
Typewritten Text

dcody
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

F 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 1 
 

Commissioners Activity Report 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 2 
 

P&Z Strategic Plan 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 3 
 

Next P&Z  Meeting– April 1, 2013 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 4 
 

     Friendswood EDC - Email 



 

Dates to Remember 

Friendswood Forum 

April 2, 2009 

8:30am 

 

City Hall will be closed the 
following days 

Friday, April 10 

Monday, May 25 

C O M M U N I T Y  
D E V E L O P M E N T   

	
Month	

Single	Family	
	Homes	

New	
Commercial	

Commercial	
Additions	&	Alterations	

2012		 #	issued	 value	 #	issued	 value	 #	issued	 value	

October	 25	 $9,183,221	 0	 0	 4	 $102,310	

November	 8	 $2,015,614	 1	 $130,000	 3	 $91,500	

December	 21	 $6,383,501	 0	 0	 5	 $198,000	

4th Quarter Building Permit Activity4th Quarter Building Permit Activity  

City of FriendswoodCity of FriendswoodCity of Friendswood   

Fast FactsFast Facts  
910	S.	Friendswood	Dr.	

Friendswood,	Tx	77546	

Dept:	281‐996‐3201	

Fax:	281‐996‐3260	

City	Hall	will	be	
closed	on		

Good	Friday,		
March	29	

	Of ice	Hours	

Monday—Thursday	

7:30am—5:30pm	

Friday	

8am—5pm	

  

 

 Ordinances	2012‐24	and	2012‐25:	Changed	park	fees	to	$600	per	dwelling	unit	for	entire	City	rather	than	

the	fees	being	broken	down	into	zones	and	Community	and	Neighborhood	Park	fees.		The	$600	fee	will	be	paid	

at	the	time	of	building	permit.	

 Ordinance	2012‐31:	Changed	the	Permitted	Use	Table	to	allow	NAICS	Use	#713940	Fitness	and	Recreational	

Sports	Centers	in	CSC,	LI,	and	I	and	to	require	a	Speci ic	Use	Permit	in	NC	and	DD.	

 Ordinance	2012‐32:	Enhanced	requirements	of	the	Downtown	District	by	amending	the	Zoning	Ordinance	

and	Appendix	E	in	the	Design	Criteria	Manual.		Changes	include	requiring	brick	paved	sidewalks	(no	stamped	

concrete),	a	minimum	of	2	lights	and	2	benches	on	each	development,	owners	to	maintain	amenities	including	

sidewalks,	added	speci ications	for	types	of	light	 ixtures	and	speci ications	regarding	the	installation	of	the	

brick	paved	sidewalks.	

Recent Ordinance ChangesRecent Ordinance Changes  

Visit	Us	Online	

www.friendswood.com	

Schedule	Inspections	
Online	

 

	
Chara	Christian	Dance	

Academy	
101	Hunters	Lane	

	
Dance	Expressions	
204	W.	Heritage	Dr.	

	
West	Ranch	Recreation	

Center	No.	2	
1201	Lake	Mist	Lane	

 

	
West	Ranch	Restricted	Reserve	E					
							and	Lake	Mist	Lane	
	
West	Ranch	West	Lake	Section	3	
	
The	Reserve	at	WR	Section	2	
	
West	Ranch	Lakeside	Section	2	
	
	
Blue	=	roads,	streets,	detention	areas	

Green	=	residential	subdivisions	

ApprovedApproved  
Site PlansSite Plans  

ApprovedApproved  
SubdivisionsSubdivisions  

 

Water	Plant	#	5		
Replacement	

	
Surface	Water	Plant	#2,	
Phase	2	System	Upgrades	

	
Blackhawk	(Oak	Vista	to	
Wandering	Trail)	Paving	

Capital Capital   
ProjectsProjects  

To	receive	this	newsletter	and	other	pertinent	information	regarding	
Community	Development	or	any	other	City	topics,	Click	‘Alert	Me’	on	the	
home	page	at	www.friendswood.com.		

 SIGN UP TODAY 

February	2013	



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 5 
 

        P&Z Survey Disccusion 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Pearland 
   

 

Discussion Item 6 
 

      APA National Conference



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1. P&Z Agenda Coversheet.pdf
	2. March 25, 2013 P&Z Agenda
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. P&Z Minutes 030413
	5. NEW BUSINESS
	6. AGENDA ITEM A
	7. Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 Street Dedication
	1 Shelton Ridge Ph. 2  Agenda Request.pdf
	2 Shelton Ridge Ph. 2 Staff Report
	3 Vicinity Map
	4 FLUP Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Shelton Ridge Lane Ph. 2 Plat
	MYSCAN_20130320_0001.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20130320_0002


	8. AGENDA ITEM B
	9. Savannah Bend Section 4
	1 Agenda Request Savannah Bend 4- P&Z.pdf
	3 P & Z Savannah Bend 4
	4 Vicinity Map
	5 Future Land Use Map
	6 Aerial Map
	7 Savannah Bend Section 4 Final
	MYSCAN_20130228_0001.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20130228_0002


	10. AGENDA ITEM C
	11. Strickland Chevrolet
	1. Strickland Chevrolet Facade Agenda Request.pdf
	2. Strickland Chevrolet Facade Exception Staff Report
	3. Strickland Information Packet

	12. AGENDA ITEM D
	13. Hughes Road
	1. Hughes Road Cluster Staff Report.pdf
	2. Vicinity Map - Hughes Rd. Cluster
	3. FLUP Map - Hughes Rd. Cluster
	4. Aerial Map - Hughes Rd. Cluster
	5. Application Packet - Hughes Rd. Cluster
	6. Initial Staff Comments

	14. AGENDA ITEM E
	15. CUP - 2013-01
	2.  CUP 2013-01 Staff Report.pdf
	3. CUP 2013-01 Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-01 Abutter Map
	5.  CUP 2013-01 Abutters List
	6. CUP 2013-01 FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2013-01 Aerial
	8. 2013-01 Application Packet

	16. AGENDA ITEM F
	17. Discussion Item 1 COMMISSIONERS REPORT
	18. Discussion Item 2 STRATEGIC PLAN
	19. Discussion Item 3
	20. Discussion Item 4
	21. Discussion Item 4 Growth Comparison
	Community DevelopmenT 

	22. Discussion Item 5
	23. Discussion Item 6
	24. ADJOURN


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




